

Draft Countywide Planning Policies

1. General Provisions

1.1 Purpose

The Washington State Growth Management Act (GMA) requires that cities and counties adopt comprehensive plans. The GMA further requires that counties adopt Countywide Planning Policies (CWPPs) (RCW 36.70A.210 & WAC 365-196-305) to guide and coordinate issues of regional significance. The following goals and policies are intended to guide intergovernmental planning efforts, fully implement the planning goals identified in the GMA, and ensure that the actions of government agencies within Island County are coordinated and consistent with one another.

1.2 Applicability

These policies are intended to apply countywide. Any Government Agency or Special Service District within Island County that conducts planning activities or provides Public Services shall be subject to the goals and policies identified in these CWPPs; specifically:

1. Planning Policies and plans adopted or enforced by Government Agencies and Special Service Districts shall be consistent with these goals and policies.
2. All decisions by Government Agencies and Special Service Districts regarding the provision or construction of Public Services and facilities shall be consistent with these goals and policies.
3. These goals and policies should not be construed to otherwise reduce, diminish, or supersede those planning and land use powers reserved exclusively for the Municipalities or the County by Washington State law.

1.3 Definitions

The following definitions shall be used in the interpretation and application of the CWPPs.

1. **Agency, Government:** The County government of Island County, a Municipality within Island County, or a department or agency of the State of Washington.
2. **County:** The County government of Island County. This term is used throughout this document to differentiate between the jurisdictional limits of the government of Island County, and the geographic area encompassed by Island County.
3. **Development Regulation:** Controls placed on development or land use activities by the County or Municipalities, including, but not limited to, zoning ordinances, critical areas ordinances, shoreline master programs, official controls, planned unit development

ordinances, platting regulations, subdivision and short subdivision ordinances, and binding site plan ordinances together with any amendments thereto.

4. **Facility of Statewide or Countywide Significance:** Those facilities that are typically difficult to site, such as airports, state education facilities and state or regional transportation facilities as defined in RCW [47.06.140](#), regional transit authority facilities as defined in RCW [81.112.020](#), state and local correctional facilities, solid waste handling facilities, and inpatient facilities including substance abuse facilities, mental health facilities, group homes, and secure community transition facilities as defined in RCW [71.09.020](#). Public school facilities and municipal sewage treatment facilities shall also be considered Facilities of Statewide or Countywide Significance. Throughput transmission facilities and major utilities, as defined in Island County Code, shall not be considered Facilities of Statewide or Countywide Significance. This definition is intended to be used synonymously with the term “essential public facilities”.
5. **Future Planning Area (FPA):** An area immediately outside of, and adjacent to, a Non-Municipal Urban Growth Area. Future Planning Areas are designated by the County to reserve areas which may be necessary for future Urban Growth and to protect land which has been identified as ~~having resource land of long term commercial significance, long term rural significance such as critical areas~~ and [land extensively constrained with critical areas](#), key entrance roads, and areas of historical significance. Broadly, such areas are intended to provide an opportunity for long term planning beyond the normal twenty year planning horizon.
6. **Joint Planning Area (JPA):** Areas immediately outside of, and adjacent to, Municipal Urban Growth Areas. JPAs are jointly designated by the County and Municipalities to reserve areas which may be necessary for future Urban Growth and to protect land which has been identified as ~~having resource land of long term commercial significance, long term rural significance such as critical areas,~~ [land extensively constrained with critical areas](#), key entrance roads, and areas of historical significance. Broadly, such areas are intended to provide an opportunity for long term planning beyond the normal twenty year planning horizon.
7. **Municipality or Municipal:** A legally incorporated or duly authorized association of inhabitants of a limited area for local government or other public purposes. For purposes of interpreting this document, “Municipality” or “Municipal” is intended to refer to the current incorporated jurisdictions in Island County (Coupeville, Langley, and Oak Harbor) as well as any city or town incorporated after the establishment of these CWPPs.
8. **Planning Area:** Four Planning Areas have been established in Island County for purposes of long term planning, population forecasting, and data analysis. The four Planning Areas include: Camano Island, North Whidbey, Central Whidbey, and South Whidbey. The specific boundaries of these areas are delineated on maps maintained by, and on file with, the County Planning Department.
9. **Planning Goals or Planning Policies:** Statements, goals, and specific policies expressed in the Growth Management Act, Countywide Planning Policies, or a comprehensive plan adopted by the County or a Municipality.

10. —

- ~~41.10.~~ **Resource Lands of Long Term Commercial Significance:** Lands zoned Commercial Agriculture CA in accordance with the Island County Zoning Code and RCW 36.70A.170 and RCW 36.70A.050.
- ~~42.11.~~ **Rural Area(s):** As used in this document the term “Rural Area” is intended to refer to all of the land area in Island County outside of Urban Growth Areas. Generally (with the exception of RAIDs) Rural Areas are intended to facilitate agriculture, forestry, and other resource dependent uses and activities which depend on rural resources and lands. Other uses may be permitted in the Rural Area when consistent with the County’s definition of Rural Character.
- ~~43.12.~~ **Rural Area of Intense Development (RAID):** Areas of existing more intense rural development designated by the County pursuant to RCW 36.70A.050(d) and WAC 365-196-425(6). This term is synonymous with, and intended to be used interchangeably with, the term “Limited Area of More Intense Rural Development” (LAMIRD) as used in the GMA. The County comprehensive plan contains a more complete definition as well as designation criteria for RAIDs.
- ~~44.13.~~ **Rural Character:** Refers to patterns of land use and development established by the County in the Rural Element of the Island County Comprehensive Plan. For purposes of interpreting this document, the definition of Rural Character shall be the definition contained in the Island County Comprehensive Plan.
- ~~45.14.~~ **Service, Public:** Includes fire protection and suppression, law enforcement, public health, education, recreation, environmental protection, utilities, and other services or facilities provide by Government Agencies or Special Service Districts. This term is synonymous with, and is intended to be used interchangeably with, the term “public facilities”.
- ~~46.15.~~ **Service, Rural:** Those Public Services and public facilities historically and typically delivered at an intensity usually found in rural areas, and may include domestic water systems, fire and police protection services, transportation and public transit services, and other public utilities associated with rural development and normally not associated with urban areas. Rural services are those services necessary to support development which is consistent with the definition of Rural Character and do not include storm or sanitary sewers, except as otherwise authorized by RCW [36.70A.110\(4\)](#).
- ~~47.16.~~ **Service, Urban:** Those Public Services and public facilities at an intensity historically and typically provided in cities, specifically including storm and sanitary sewer systems, domestic water systems, street cleaning services, fire and police protection services, transportation and public transit services, and other public utilities associated with urban areas and normally not associated with Rural Areas. Urban Services are intended to accommodate and facilitate Urban Development consistent with the policies expressed in the comprehensive plans adopted by County and Municipalities.
- ~~48.17.~~ **Special Service District:** Independent governmental units that exist separately from local governments to provide public services to limited areas using public funds, including but not limited to sewer and water districts, fire districts, and school districts.
- ~~49.18.~~ **Sprawl, Sprawling:** Scattered, poorly planned Urban Development that often occurs in urban fringe and Rural areas. Generally sprawl is neither reflective of Urban Character

nor Rural Character. Sprawl occurs at densities too high to maintain Rural Character, but too low to provide the full range of social, economic, and cultural amenities typically associated with cities and towns. Sprawl is also characterized by forms of development which are difficult or costly to serve with high quality Urban Services

- | ~~20.~~19. **Urban Character, Urban Form:** Refers to a pattern of Urban Growth characterized by a high concentration of economic, social, and cultural amenities, as well as a full range of housing types and densities. Each Municipality in Island County has adopted a Comprehensive Plan which is expressive of their desired Urban Form and Character.
- | ~~24.~~20. **Urban Development, Urban Growth:** A pattern of growth that makes intensive use of land for the location of buildings, structures, and impermeable surfaces to such a degree as to be incompatible with the primary use of land for the production of food, other agricultural products, or fiber, or the extraction of mineral resources, rural uses, rural development, and natural resource lands designated pursuant to RCW [36.70A.170](#). Additionally, the term Urban Development includes all forms of development that are inconsistent with the County's adopted definition of Rural Character.
- | ~~22.~~21. **Urban Growth Area (UGA):** Areas within which Urban Growth is encouraged and outside of which growth can occur only if it is consistent with Rural Character and not Urban Development or urban in nature. In Island County UGAs have been established around each Municipality. In addition, a UGA has been established around Freeland in recognition of its existing pattern of Urban Development.
- | ~~23.~~22. **Urban Growth Area, Municipal (MUGA):** Each Municipality in Island County has been included in an Urban Growth Area and is responsible for developing a comprehensive plan in compliance with the GMA and the County Wide Planning Policies developed jointly by the County and Municipalities. For purposes of interpreting this document, the term "Municipal Urban Growth Area" shall mean an Urban Growth Area associated with an incorporated Municipality.
- | ~~24.~~23. **Urban Growth Area, Non-Municipal (NMUGA):** An area characterized by an extensive pattern of Urban Development which was established prior to the adoption of the GMA and which does not include an incorporated Municipality. In Island County, a Non-Municipal Urban Growth Area has been established around the unincorporated area of Freeland in recognition of an existing pattern of Urban Development. The Freeland Non-Municipal Urban Growth Area is subject to the Planning Goals and Policies set forth in the County's Comprehensive Plan and the Freeland Subarea Plan.
- | ~~25.~~24. **Urban Growth Boundary (UGB):** The line separating Urban Growth Areas from surrounding Rural Areas. The UGB is intended to preserve Rural Character in Rural Areas and prevent low-density Sprawling development by focusing and encouraging Urban Growth in designated Urban Growth Areas.

2. Countywide Planning Goals

Island County and the municipalities have identified the following goals as being of countywide concern. These goals are intended to establish a foundation for, and guide the interpretation of, the policies contained in this document.

1. **Intergovernmental coordination:** The County, the City of Langley, the Town of Coupeville, the City of Oak Harbor, State Agencies, and Special Service Districts will work together to address issues of regional, or countywide importance in a coordinated fashion. Proactive communication and coordination will improve the quality of planning activities and reduce the likelihood of disputes.
2. **Joint City and County Planning:** Decisions regarding Joint Planning Areas, [Municipal Urban Growth Areas](#), areas for future UGA expansions, [and JPA Overlay designations](#) ~~and areas of Long Term Rural Significance~~ will be made by the County and Municipalities in a cooperative fashion.
3. **Public Participation:** Island County citizens will be involved in the planning process and public comments will be considered by the County and Municipalities before making planning decisions involving issues of countywide concern.
4. **Urban Growth Areas:** All decisions regarding the designation of new Urban Growth Areas, adjustments to existing Urban Growth Areas, population forecasting, and the allocation of population to Urban Growth Areas will be made using clearly stated and rational criteria.
5. **Urban Development:** The social and economic vitality of Island County's cities and towns will be reinforced by ensuring that Urban Development occurs only within designated Urban Growth Areas.
6. **Rural Development:** Island County's unique rural atmosphere and lifestyle will be protected from Sprawling low density development and inappropriate uses; also, rural land use plans will ensure that permitted development is consistent with the availability of Rural Services and resources.
7. **Public Services:** Adopted land use and economic development plans will be reinforced and supported by Public Service and infrastructure investments. Decisions on infrastructure investments and the provision of Public Services will be made in a way which strengthens and reinforces adopted Planning Goals and Policies.
8. **Urban Services:** In order to protect and enhance the quality of life enjoyed by the residents of Island County's Municipalities and Urban Growth Areas, Urban Development will be provided with high quality Urban Services. The Municipalities will work to provide services at a level that promotes and fosters Urban Development in a manner consistent with their adopted Planning Goals and Policies. Urban Services will not be provided outside of Urban Growth Areas to protect Island County's Rural Character and prevent scattered Sprawling development patterns which are inefficient and costly to serve.
9. **Facilities of Countywide or Statewide Significance:** In recognition of the fact that some uses are difficult to site, but may be regionally significant or essential, the County, Municipalities, and State agencies will work together to develop consistent policies and regulations governing, but not prohibiting these facilities.
10. **Transportation:** Island County should be served by an efficient, well connected, multimodal transportation system. Transportation plans, spending decisions, and regulations will be consistent with and reinforce adopted land use and economic development plans.

11. **Affordable Housing:** Opportunities for affordable housing will be provided throughout Island County and a full range of housing types and densities will be permitted in Island County's Urban Growth Areas and Municipalities in order to ensure that the supply of new housing is consistent with demand.
12. **Economic Development:** Develop a coordinated and diverse economic base that provides employment opportunities and improves the wellbeing of all economic segments of Island County's population. The County and Municipalities will consider economic development broadly by incorporating Planning Policies throughout their planning documents that are supportive of a coordinated economic development strategy.
13. **Critical Areas:** The County and Municipalities will work together to ensure that Planning Policies, and Development Regulations designed to protect Island County's natural resources and critical areas are consistent with one another.
14. **Historic Preservation:** Preserve and protect cultural resources as well as lands, sites, and structures that have historic or archaeological significance.
15. **Water Resources:** Protect the long term viability of Island County's drinking water supply and the rights of Island County's existing residents, by considering the relationship between allowed densities and known and/or verifiable water supplies.
16. **Climate & Natural Disasters:** In order to avoid unnecessary and costly infrastructure and to avoid exposing Island County residents to unnecessary risk, the County and Municipalities will work proactively to prepare for, and if necessary, adapt to the impacts of changing climate patterns and natural disasters.
17. **Public Health:** Promote the health of people of all ages and abilities by adopting policies and regulations that encourage safe, healthy habits through the communities we plan, build, and preserve.

3. Countywide Planning Policies

The following policies are intended to facilitate the realization of the countywide goals identified above. These policies are further intended to guide the development of County and Municipal comprehensive plans and Development Regulations where such plans and regulations involve issues of countywide concern.

3.1 General Provisions

1. Except as otherwise stated, Municipalities shall be responsible for establishing long range plans and Planning Policies for Municipal Urban Growth Areas. The Municipalities shall also be exclusively responsible for regulating land use and development within the incorporated portions of Municipal Urban Growth Areas.
2. The County shall be responsible for regulating land use and development activities within unincorporated portions of Municipal Urban Growth Areas; however, the County must coordinate with the associated Municipality to ensure that any new uses authorized

- by a County permit or Development Regulations are consistent with the Municipality's Planning Goals and Policies, as well as any applicable Countywide Planning Policies.
3. Growth and development within Non-Municipal Urban Growth Areas shall be planned for, managed, and regulated by the County.
 4. The County and the Municipalities should coordinate where appropriate, the development and implementation of long-range plans for youth services, senior services, fire protection, police services, air quality, transportation, solid waste, public and private utilities, watershed and storm-water planning, and environmental plans for the protection of critical areas.
 5. Growth and development outside of Urban Growth Areas shall be planned for, managed, and regulated by the County, except that planning within Joint Planning Areas shall be subject to the joint planning area policies described below in section 3.2.

3.2 Joint Planning Area Policies

1. For each Municipal UGA, the County and the Municipality associated with the MUGA shall collaboratively designate a Joint Planning Area (JPA). Broadly, such areas are intended to provide an opportunity for long term planning beyond the normal twenty-year planning horizon.
 - a. When identifying properties for inclusion in the JPA, the following shall be given first consideration:
 - i. Lands adjacent to the MUGA;
 - ii. Lands adjacent to essential public facilities and urban services;
 - iii. Lands that facilitate connectivity to established or projected transportation corridors; and
 - iv. Lands where inter-jurisdictional long term coordination would be beneficial due to the sensitive nature of adjacent uses.
 - b. When possible, resource lands of long term commercial significance should be considered for exclusion from the JPA.
 - c. JPA boundary lines shall be drawn, wherever practical, in order to:
 - i. Be contiguous and not contain any holes;
 - ii. Follow street alignments, water courses, and other physical boundaries;
 - iii. Be kept straight, simple, and logical; and
 - iv. Follow parcel boundaries (not dividing a parcel).
2. The County and Municipality shall also collaboratively produce a long term conceptual plan for the Joint Planning Area as follows:
 - a. Two broad overlay designations shall apply within JPAs as follows; ~~Potential Priority~~ Growth Area (PGA) and ~~Long-Term Rural Significance~~ Auxiliary Growth Area (AGA) ~~(LRS)~~. These designations need not be applied to all land within the JPA, land may be left undesignated; however, sufficient quantities of both PGA

and ~~LRS-AGA~~ land should be designated to guide and control future development and UGA expansions.

- ~~b.~~ The JPA overlay designation of ~~Potential~~ Priority Growth Area (PGA) ~~should be considered for lands which are; if it is~~
- ~~i.~~ Already characterized by Urban Development,
 - ~~ii.~~ Served by Urban Services, particularly sanitary sewer, or
 - ~~iii.~~ Determined by the Municipality and the County to be the most logical and cost effective location to accommodate future Urban Growth Area expansions.
- ~~b.c.~~ Land ~~which should not be assigned a Joint Planning Area overlay designation of~~ PGA if such land meets the criteria for an ~~LRS~~AGA designation ~~unless when such designation meets the criteria established in 3.2(2)(f) of this chapter. shall not be assigned a Joint Planning Area overlay designation of PGA.~~
- ~~d.~~ A JPA overlay designation of Auxiliary Growth Area (AGA) should be considered for lands which are: ~~Designate areas of Long Term Rural Significance (LRS) which have been designated for agricultural or forestry uses. Lands which are~~
- ~~i.~~ Extensively constrained by critical areas, flood hazards, or tsunami hazards;
 - ~~ii.~~ ~~should also be given an LRS designation. Lands which are determined~~ Determined by the County and/or Municipality to have long term cultural, scenic or environmental benefits;
 - ~~iii.~~ ~~may also be assigned an LRS designation. At a minimum, all lands~~ Resource lands of long term commercial significance;
 - ~~iv.~~ ~~Classified as farm and agricultural lands and qualify for property valuation at current use classification under RCW 84.34.020(2) or RCW 84.33.035; or have been assigned a County Comprehensive Plan designation of Rural Agriculture (RA), Commercial Agriculture (CA), or Rural Forest (RF) shall be assigned an LRS designation along with any other lands which may be within contiguous blocks of RA, CA, or RF land, unless such a designation would conflict with policy 3.2.1.e below by completely precluding, forestalling, or rendering impractical future UGA expansions.~~
 - ~~v.~~ Within or in close proximity to Accident Potential Zones, and areas highly impacted by aircraft noise identified in AICUZ Program noise contour maps.
- ~~e.e.~~ When possible, a buffer of land should be provided between the UGB or lands designated as Priority Growth Areas, and lands which have been designated as resource lands of long term commercial significance. ~~assigned a comprehensive plan designation of Commercial Agriculture (CA), Rural Agriculture (RA), or Rural Forest (RF).~~ When such a buffer is established it shall be assigned a designation of LRSAGA. A buffer should not be established if it would result in highly irregular or impractically configured LRS-AGA overlay boundaries.
- ~~f.~~ ~~With the exception of the Coupeville JPA,~~ Joint Planning Area designations shall not be assigned in such a way that future UGA expansions are completely precluded, forestalled, or rendered impractical; areas must be provided to allow

for future UGA expansions. Lands designated AGA may be considered for re-designation to PGA when:

- i. An AGA designation would create a non-contiguous (“donut hole”) area of County land with future UGA expansions;
- ii. An AGA designation would preclude, forestall, or make impractical the future and logical expansion of the UGA;
- iii. An AGA designated area is located adjacent to or in close proximity to established or projected transportation corridors;
- iv. An AGA designated area is needed to facilitate or provide access and connectivity to established or projected transportation corridors;
- v. An AGA designated area is located adjacent to or in close proximity to essential public facilities or urban services; or
- i.vi. An AGA designated area is needed to facilitate the logical extension of urban services or for the siting of essential public facilities.

g. Lands designated AGA that perform a critical hydrogeologic function that serves the larger area should remain AGA when possible.

3. The County shall adopt the ~~LRS~~ PGA and ~~PGA~~ AGA designations as Comprehensive Plan overlay designations which will apply in addition to any underlying comprehensive plan or zoning designations.
4. The County may adopt a Future Planning Area around the Freeland Non-Municipal Urban Growth Area and assign overlay designations ~~similar to those discussed above in accordance with the criteria provided in Section 3.2.~~ in accordance with the criteria provided in Section 3.2.
5. A conceptual JPA plan should be prepared by the County in cooperation with each Municipality consistent with the above criteria, the Planning Goals and Policies expressed in this document, and any applicable County Planning Goals and Policies. The County and Municipalities should then work together to resolve any concerns prior to final adoption by the County.
6. Proposals to modify a MUGA or Joint Planning Area may be made by a Municipality or the County. Modifications to JPA plans shall be subject to the procedures and criteria identified above and should generally ~~only be reviewed made~~ only be reviewed during the periodic update cycle mandated by the GMA or sooner if needed to ensure consistency with adopted criteria.
7. For lands assigned a designation of ~~Potential Growth Area (PGA)~~ Priority Growth Area (PGA), the County shall adopt Planning Policies ~~and Development Regulations~~ which limit or restrict development which could interfere with the efficient utilization of such lands for future Urban Development. The County shall also adopt Planning Policies ~~and Development Regulations~~ which provide Municipalities notification of significant development proposals (such as land divisions, site plan approvals, or major transportation projects) within the JPA, and shall provide the affected Municipality with the ability to comment on such proposals.
8. For lands assigned a designation of ~~Long Term Rural Significance (LRS)~~ Auxiliary Growth Area (AGA) the County shall adopt Planning Policies and ~~Development~~

~~Regulations~~ which protect the agricultural, environmental, forestry, aesthetic, or cultural values of such lands.

3.3 Urban Growth Areas

Consistent with the provisions of RCW 36.70A.110, a Municipal Urban Growth Area has been established around each Municipality. A Non-Municipal UGA has also been established in Freeland in recognition of the fact that Freeland is already characterized by Urban Development. Existing UGAs may be modified when it can be demonstrated that the proposed modification is consistent with the following policies. These policies are intended to implement countywide planning goals 2.1, 2.2, 2.4, and 2.5 as well as GMA planning goals one, two, and four [as provided for in RCW 36.70a.020](#).

1. The review of a UGA for possible expansion is a significant undertaking. Generally UGAs should only be enlarged or modified during the periodic update process; however, UGAs may be modified outside of the periodic update process if necessary to accommodate major and unanticipated fluctuations in Island County's population, or if necessary to accommodate a large employer or institution which cannot reasonably be accommodated within an existing UGA.
2. Urban Growth Areas may be expanded during a GMA mandated periodic update cycle if necessary to accommodate a 20 year supply of buildable land as required by RCW 36.70A.110.
3. Urban Growth Areas may be expanded outside of a GMA mandated periodic update cycle if the expansion is necessary for one of the following reasons. For purposes of interpreting these policies "the start of the planning period" shall mean the date on which the most recent periodic update was completed.
 - a. Population growth in the UGA since the start of the planning period equals or exceeds fifty percent of the population growth allocated to the UGA at the start of the planning period; or
 - b. Employment growth in the UGA since the start of the planning period equals or exceeds fifty percent of the employment growth allocated to the UGA at the start of the planning period; or
 - c. Written notification is provided by the Department of Defense, or other reliable and verifiable information is obtained, indicating that prior to the next periodic update cycle, Naval Air Station Whidbey staffing will increase in a manner which would result in population growth equal to or exceeding fifty percent of the population growth allocated to the UGA at the start of the planning period; or
 - d. An opportunity is presented to bring a large scale business, industry, institution, or other significant employer to Island County, and the County and Municipality agree that due to the facility or institution's unique characteristics there is no suitable land available inside the current UGA.
4. [When a mid-cycle evaluation is requested, the following will be evaluated, along with other relevant data, to determine if county population projections and/or allocations need to be adjusted for the twenty-year planning period:](#)

- a. Migration factors (including commuter patterns, retirees, and county job growth);
- b. Actual vs. projected growth (permit data);
- c. Growth locations and densities (permit data); and
- d. Project impacts, if expansion evaluation is pursuant to 3.3.3 (c) or (d).

~~4.5.~~ Urban Growth Areas shall be sized to include only the land necessary to accommodate twenty years of population and employment growth based on the methodology included in Appendix "A". This methodology is intended to provide for a reasonable market factor.

~~5.6.~~ In considering potential UGA expansion scenarios, Municipalities should consider alternative measures such as, increasing the densities allowed within their existing UGA or altering the uses allowed by their land use plan and zoning regulations. The viability of such measures should then be discussed with the County. In determining the viability of such alternative measures, the Municipalities may consider a full range of economic, social, and real estate market factors.

~~7.~~ If it is determined that an expansion or modification of a UGA is necessary, the UGA boundaries must be evaluated on a county-wide basis, be based on a County population projection that does not exceed the Office of Financial Management (OFM) published ranges, and include an evaluation of the allocation of growth to each Planning Area and UGA.

~~6.8.~~ Land shall be considered for inclusion within the UGA in the following order:

- a. Land with a JPA overlay designation of PGA.
- b. Land within a JPA which has not been assigned a JPA overlay designation, provided such land is not extensively constrained by critical areas or located in a significant flood or tsunami hazard area.
- c. Land with a JPA overlay designation of ~~LRS-AGA and an underlying County comprehensive plan designation of Rural (R) zoning,~~ which is not extensively constrained by critical areas, and which does not contain significant flood or tsunami hazard areas.
- d. Land with a JPA overlay designation of ~~LRS-AGA, and~~ which is not resource land of long term commercial significance, an underlying County comprehensive plan designation of Rural Agriculture (RA) or Rural Forest (RF) zoning, which is not extensively constrained by critical areas, and ~~which~~ does not contain significant flood or tsunami hazard areas.

~~7.9.~~ Land which is extensively constrained by critical areas, or which is designated as resource land of long term commercial significance ~~and is identified by a County comprehensive plan designation of "Commercial Agriculture" (CA) zoning,~~ shall should be considered the ~~absolute~~ lowest priority for inclusion within a UGA and ~~shall~~ should only be included within a UGA upon a demonstration of the following:

- a. After a thorough consideration of all other reasonable measures the UGA must be expanded in order to relieve a critical shortage of buildable land;
- b. No other land exists which can reasonably be added to the UGA;
- c. The land being considered can be reasonably served by Urban Services; and

- d. [A transfer of development rights \(TDR\) program has been established per WAC 365-196-815\(1\)\(a\).](#)

~~8.10.~~ Under no circumstances shall a UGA be expanded into a designated tsunami or flood hazard area unless the land is assigned an extremely low intensity comprehensive plan designation such as park or open space.

~~9.11.~~ Urban Growth Areas may be reduced in size if:

- a. Revised population estimates or allocations indicate that that the existing UGA is larger than necessary to accommodate a 20 year supply of buildable land.
- b. Densities within the UGA have been increased such that the UGA is larger than necessary to accommodate a 20 year supply of buildable land.
- c. It is determined that Urban Services including public sewer and water cannot reasonably be provided to the area included in the proposed UGA reduction. Any UGA reduction proposed on the basis of this criterion shall ensure that any population currently allocated to the area included in the proposed reduction is redistributed elsewhere within the UGA, or to another UGA.

~~10.12.~~ Urban Growth Areas may be modified by simultaneously including and excluding land so that the total area of the UGA is not altered, provided that land shall be considered for inclusion based on the criteria expressed in policies 3.3.5, 3.3.6, and 3.3.7 above.

~~11.13.~~ Land shall not be removed from a UGA if it is already characterized by Urban Development, permits have been issued authorizing Urban Development, or Urban Services have been extended into the area, unless the area is physically separated from and not adjacent to existing urbanized areas and would otherwise qualify as a Rural Area of Intense Development (RAID).

~~12.14.~~ UGA modifications outside of the period update cycle may be proposed by a Municipality, the County, or an individual. Modifications proposed by Municipalities or individuals shall be submitted to the County in a manner consistent with the County's procedures for comprehensive plan amendments and placed on the County's annual review docket [\(per ICC 16.26\)](#). Modifications proposed by individuals shall not be approved by the County unless the modification is supported by the legislative authority of the affected Municipality.

~~13.15.~~ For any proposed UGA modification a current land capacity analysis shall be prepared and shall utilize the procedures described in Appendix A. The land capacity analysis should be performed by the jurisdiction initiating the UGA modification, unless the modification is initiated by an individual, in which case the land capacity analysis should be completed by the County.

3.4 Urban Development

The following policies have been adopted to ensure that Urban Development occurs only within designated Urban Growth Areas, and that Urban Growth is orderly, compact, contiguous, and adequately served by Urban Services. These policies are intended to implement countywide planning goals 2.4, 2.5, and 2.8 as well as GMA planning goals one, two, and twelve.

1. Urban Development shall take place only within municipalities and UGAs.
2. Each Municipality shall prepare land use plans, Planning Policies, and Development Regulations for their UGA. These plans, Planning Policies, and Development Regulations shall be used to regulate development activities within the incorporated boundaries of the Municipality. For land within a Municipal UGA, but outside the incorporated boundaries of a Municipality, the County's Planning Policies and Development Regulations shall apply until such time that the land is annexed. Upon annexation the Municipality's Planning Policies and Development Regulations shall apply.
3. Urban Development shall be expressive of Urban Character. Planning Policies and Development Regulations should be adopted by the County and the Municipalities to ensure that Urban Development is not wasteful of land or resources, and that Urban Development proceeds in an orderly contiguous fashion.
4. Planning Policies and Development Regulations shall be adopted which require that new development, including subdivisions, short subdivisions, site plan approvals, and building permits for new homes and commercial or industrial buildings within a designated UGA be served by public sewer and water.
5. Development Regulations may be adopted by the Municipalities (or by the County in the case of the Freeland NMUGA) which allow variances or waivers to be granted from the above requirement in situations where public sewer and water cannot be provided economically due to topographical constraints or an inability to obtain the approval of intervening land owners. Waivers or variances should only be granted to serve existing development or to permit the development of single-family homes on existing lots. Waivers or variances shall not be used to permit land division or the establishment of new non-residential uses.
6. The construction or installation of new private wells and septic systems within Urban Growth Areas should be strongly discouraged and only allowed through a variance or waiver as described above in policy 3.4.5. When permitted, these systems should be considered an interim solution until public sewer or water service can be provided.
7. The Municipalities and County agree that steps should be taken during each periodic update cycle to increase the percentage of Island County's overall growth occurring within UGAs. The Municipalities and the County should work to foster, promote, and accommodate additional housing and job growth within existing UGAs and shall adopt policies to accomplish this objective.
8. Municipalities shall not annex land outside an Urban Growth Area.
9. Land recently added to a UGA shall not be annexed until any appeal periods or proceedings associated with the UGA expansion have lapsed or been resolved.
10. Each Municipality should include specific policies to guide the incorporation process in their comprehensive plans.
11. It is recognized that Urban Growth and Development should be regulated by the Municipalities. Accordingly, the following policies are intended to facilitate and encourage the annexation of land outside of existing Municipal boundaries but within

Municipal UGAs. These policies are also intended to ensure that Urban Development occurs in a logical, incremental, and rational fashion, and to prevent the County from authorizing development within a Municipality's UGA which forestalls or frustrates future Urban Development or the realization of the Municipality's Planning Goals and Policies:

- a. Land outside of existing Municipal boundaries but within a Municipal UGA shall be assigned a County comprehensive plan and zoning designation of Urban Holding "UH" until such time that it is annexed by a municipality. Once the annexation process is complete, the Municipality's Planning Policies, zoning designations, and Development Regulations shall be used to regulate development.
 - b. Island County will support the incorporation of Non-Municipal Urban Growth Areas and provide technical assistance as needed, provided that all annexation and incorporation proposals involving land associated with a Non-Municipal Urban Growth Area will be reviewed against the relevant incorporation/annexation criteria set forth in State law, including a thorough analysis of fiscal impacts.
 - c. In allocating projected growth to UGAs, priority should be given to Municipal UGAs over Non-Municipal UGAs within the same planning area.
 - d. The County shall [continue to work with local jurisdictions to adopt Planning Policies and Development Regulations that will facilitate anticipated urban development, annexation and the provision of urban services in those areas designated UH.](#) ~~adopt Planning Policies and Development Regulations which prohibit Urban Development in areas subject to an Urban Holding designation, including land divisions at urban densities and site plan approvals for Urban Development, provided that minor redevelopment, remodeling, and improvements may be permitted in areas designated UH which are characterized by existing Urban Development.~~
12. Incorporation proposals involving land outside the boundaries of a Non-Municipal Urban Growth Area shall not be supported or approved by the County.

3.5 Rural Development

1. All development outside of UGAs shall be consistent with the County's definition of Rural Character.
2. Allowed land uses in the Rural Areas should primarily be agricultural or low density residential in nature. In order to support the economic and social vitality of existing cities and towns, non-residential, non-agricultural uses in Rural Areas should generally be limited to small scale home businesses and non-residential uses which are directly related to, and supportive of, agricultural uses. Small scale recreation and tourist uses may also be appropriate in Rural Areas, and higher density housing and certain commercial uses may be permitted in the County's RAIDs. The County shall adopt Planning Policies.

3. In establishing allowed densities and uses in Rural Areas, the County shall consider the long term availability of known and /or verifiable water supplies, the general suitability of the area for on-site septic systems, the presence of geologically unstable areas, and the presence of flood or tsunami hazards.
4. The County shall plan for the timely and efficient provision of Rural Services.
5. In general, public facilities and buildings should not be located in Rural Areas unless their function or service area is best served by a location outside of a UGA.
6. The Municipalities and the County have agreed that the percentage of growth occurring within UGAs should be increased. The County should adopt Planning Policies and Development Regulations in order to achieve this objective.

3.6 Public Facilities and Services

1. New Urban Services and facilities shall not be provided or extended outside of Urban Growth Areas. In particular, sanitary sewer systems may not be extended outside of existing UGAs unless necessary to respond to a documented public health hazard caused by existing development which cannot be remedied in any other reasonable way.
2. Public Services and facilities shall be provided in a manner which is consistent with, and helps to implement all aspects of locally adopted comprehensive plans and Development Regulations.
3. Public Services and facilities shall not be provided in a manner which is contrary to locally adopted comprehensive plans and Development Regulations.
4. Within UGAs, provisions must be made to ensure that necessary Urban Services are available or in place prior to, or concurrent with, Urban Development.
5. Consistent with GMA requirements, locally adopted comprehensive plans and Development Regulations shall specifically identify how Urban Services will be provided throughout UGAs.
6. With respect to services or facilities of regional significance, Municipalities and the County should coordinate capital facilities planning and funding within UGAs.
7. The County and the Municipalities will work together to implement, enforce, and update the Coordinated Water System Plan and any associated Planning Policies or Development Regulations.
8. Public Services and facilities should be located in areas which are accessible by all modes of transportation. In particular, public services serving low income or mobility impaired citizens should be located in close proximity to transit stops and in areas with a well developed network of sidewalks and paths.
9. In general, public facilities and buildings should not be located in Rural Areas. In evaluating the appropriate location for public buildings and facilities, sites should be considered in the following order of preference:
 - a. Sites within existing Municipalities.

- b. Sites outside of existing Municipalities, but within UGAs.
- c. Sites outside of an existing Municipality, or UGA, but within a Limited Area of More Intense Rural Development (RAID).
- d. Sites in Rural Areas, but only when it can be shown that the Public Service requires a location in a Rural Area due to its unique operational characteristics or service area requirements.

3.7 Facilities of Countywide or Statewide Significance

The County and the Municipalities are required by the GMA (RCW 36.70A.200) to include provisions in their comprehensive plans and Development Regulations addressing essential public facilities. The following policies are intended to guide the designation, location, expansion, and modification of Facilities of Countywide or Statewide Significance and to ensure full compliance with GMA requirements.

1. The County and Municipalities shall ensure that their Planning Policies and Development Regulations contain policies and procedures allowing for, and governing facilities of statewide or countywide significance.
2. The County and each Municipality should establish a process through their comprehensive plans or Development Regulations for identifying and regulating the location and development of essential public facilities. These policies and regulations should, at a minimum, include:
 - a. A process for determining whether or not a given facility or service meets the definition of an essential public facility.
 - b. A process, including specific criteria, for evaluating alternative locations.
 - c. Provisions to ensure that the environment, public health, and safety are protected.
 - d. For facilities outside of UGAs, provisions to ensure, to the extent possible, the facility is consistent with the County's adopted definition of Rural Character.
3. To the extent possible, essential public facilities should be located in a manner which is consistent with, and supportive of adopted land-use, transportation, and economic development plans.
4. Essential public facilities shall be located within a UGA unless it can be demonstrated that a rural location is the most appropriate location based on the specific characteristics and operational needs of the facility. Mere convenience or expediency is not sufficient to demonstrate compliance with this requirement.
5. Essential public facilities located outside of a UGA should be self contained and should not require the extension or provision of Urban Services. In the event that it is absolutely necessary to extend Urban Services to allow for the establishment of an essential public facility that would otherwise be impossible to establish, Urban Services shall be provided in a manner which precludes further extension or connections in the intervening areas. In such instances, the extension of Urban Services shall not be used to service Rural Development or to justify future UGA expansions that could not otherwise be supported by the policies of this document

6. The County and Municipalities shall not preclude the establishment or provision of an essential public facility when proposals for such services or facilities are consistent with these policies, as well as any Planning Policies and Development Regulations adopted by the County or Municipalities regulating essential public facilities.
7. The County, in collaboration with the affected municipality shall review proposals for Facilities of Countywide or Statewide Significance in unincorporated Municipal UGAs, taking into consideration these policies, as well as applicable County and Municipal policies and regulations.

3.8 Transportation

1. The transportation element of the County's comprehensive plan should include Urban Growth Area components to ensure consistency among planning jurisdictions. All transportation planning, including that of Federal or State agencies, and Port Districts, should be jointly and cooperatively developed, adopted and implemented through coordinated and collaborative planning efforts.
2. The County and Municipalities should each actively participate in multi-county, multi-jurisdiction, regional transportation planning, including planning for Washington State Ferries.
3. The County and Municipalities will cooperate in the analysis of, and response to, any major industrial, retail, commercial, recreation, or residential development proposal that may impact the transportation systems in Island County.
4. The capacity of the transportation system must be planned, built, and managed to meet planned land use densities in UGAs.
5. The planned transportation system should be implemented in a coordinated and cost effective manner utilizing a fair and sufficient method of funding.
6. The County and Municipalities shall work together in identifying and preserving transportation corridors in JPAs and unincorporated UGAs. The location and extent of such corridors should be based on the street classifications and/or future street maps recommended or identified in the Transportation Elements of Municipal Comprehensive Plans.
7. The purchase of right-of-way, or the construction of transportation projects necessary to facilitate Urban Development, within unincorporated UGAs shall be the responsibility of the Municipality associated with the UGA.
8. The County and Municipalities will coordinate their respective transportation plans for consistency and interconnectedness in JPAs and unincorporated Municipal UGAs. For developments occurring in a JPA, or an unincorporated Municipal UGA, that may impact future transportation corridors, the County will notify the Municipality responsible for the UGA or JPA of the development and provide the Municipality with an opportunity to comment on the proposal.
9. Pursuant to RCW 36.70A.430, a multi-jurisdiction environmental and permitting process should be established for reviewing and coordinating state and local permits for

transportation projects that cross Municipal or County boundaries. This policy may be carried out through the development of inter-local agreements with the Municipalities within Island County as well as adjoining Counties and Municipalities.

3.9 Housing

In order to meet the need for affordable housing and to accommodate the housing needs for all economic segments of the population, the County and Municipalities will consider the following policies in the development of locally adopted comprehensive plans:

1. A wide range of housing development types and densities throughout Island County should be encouraged and promoted to meet the needs of a diverse population and provide affordable housing choices for all;
2. Manufactured home parks at urban densities, should be located within Municipalities, UGAs and/or unincorporated rural centers;
3. Multi-family housing should be located within Municipalities, UGAs and/or unincorporated Rural Centers;
4. In order to maximize economic opportunity and enhance the wellbeing of Island County's low income residents, publicly funded low income housing should be located in close proximity to employment centers, transit stops, and other public services.
5. The comprehensive plans of the County and the Municipalities should consider the following housing policies:
 - a. Development of boarding houses, single-room occupancy housing, scattered site housing, and accessory housing such as elder cottages, guest houses, and/or attached apartments;
 - b. Establishment of a public/private housing trust fund to provide loans and grants for development of low to moderate income housing and housing for persons with special needs;
 - c. Identification of publicly owned properties within UGAs or RAIDs that could serve as possible sites for the development of affordable low income housing; and
 - d. Identification of regulatory relief actions such as inclusionary zoning, density bonuses for the development of lower-cost housing or in-lieu payments into a housing trust fund, forgiveness of impact or mitigation fees for low-income housing as authorized under the GMA or priority permit process treatment of housing developments intended for or including affordable housing.
6. Provisions for affordable housing will be required elements of the economic development and comprehensive plans of the County and Municipalities.

3.10 Land Use & Public Health

Access to clean air and water, healthy food, affordable housing, adequate transportation, and opportunities for physical activity, are all key factors that contribute to a positive quality of life.

The Growth Management Act (GMA) encourages the availability of affordable housing, efficient multimodal transportation systems, retaining open spaces, enhancing recreational opportunities and requires communities to plan for bicycle and pedestrian transportation and physical activity. Establishing a deliberate connection between land use and public health will assist the County and the Municipalities in realizing these GMA objectives. Therefore, it is the policy of the County and the Municipalities that the following policies should be considered when developing or revising County or Municipal Planning Policies and Development Regulations:

1. Roadway systems should be planned, built, and managed to encourage alternative transportation modes to the single-occupant vehicle. Transportation systems should support active, independent mobility for users of all ages and abilities, including children, youth, families, older adults, and individuals with disabilities. Each jurisdiction should encourage:
 - a. Use of public transportation;
 - b. Development of linked on-street bicycle routes and pedestrian and bicycle corridors;
 - c. Adequate pedestrian facilities; and
 - d. Provisions for connections between different modes of transportation.
2. Development within UGAs should encourage enhanced community access and promote healthy active lifestyles through:
 - a. An appropriate mix of land uses and intensities of land uses;
 - b. Well connected street grids;
 - c. Non-motorized access to transportation;
 - d. Appropriate pedestrian and bicycle facilities that allow for safe travel; and
 - e. Regionally connected trail systems.
3. A countywide system of non-motorized trails should be established in accordance with the Island County Non-Motorized Trails Plan. Trail development should be completed through regional collaboration and prioritize linking multi-modal transportation, schools, urban development, places of employment, and recreational facilities.
4. Residents should have adequate access to “open space” areas. Open spaces include land which contains natural areas, habitat lands, natural drainage features, and/or other environmental, cultural and scenic resources. Such land should be preserved and provided to residents for recreational use when appropriate. Open spaces should be linked to non-motorized transportation and public transportation.
5. Residents should have access to healthy food choices. Consideration should be given to establishing land use patterns and Development Regulations that support such access. Land use and Development Regulation amendments should consider the potential to remove existing barriers to healthy food choices, if they exist. Home and community gardens within UGAs should be encouraged and supported through design and permitting processes.
6. Access to affordable housing influences, and is influenced by, residents health. Housing services should be planned with collaboration of health and economic development expertise. Development of multi-family affordable housing should be encouraged near

major employment opportunities, public services including healthcare, public transportation, retail providing healthy food options, and open spaces such as parks and trails.

3.11 Economic Development & Employment

To ensure future economic vitality, broaden employment opportunities, and meet the needs of projected growth while retaining a high-quality environment, the County and the Municipalities have determined that the following policies should guide local economic development planning efforts:

1. Economic growth should be encouraged within the capacities of the County's natural resources, public services and public facilities;
2. The Economic Development Element of the Island County Comprehensive Plan and the comprehensive plans of the Municipalities should, at a minimum:
 - a. Consider the goods, services and employment requirements of existing and projected population;
 - b. Identify the land use, infrastructure, transportation, and labor market requirements of businesses which have the highest probability of economic success in Island County and the least negative impact on the quality of life;
 - c. Based on citizen input, existing land use patterns and local capacity (geographic environmental and other considerations), determine areas suitable for retail, commercial and industrial uses; and
 - d. Encourage expansion of the tax base to support the infrastructure and services required to support a growing or changing population.
3. Future retail, commercial, and industrial development should be encouraged in UGAs and RAIDs as identified in the comprehensive plans adopted by the County and Municipalities.
4. Land use regulations and infrastructure plans of the County and Municipalities should be amended or developed in a manner that supports economic development elements of locally adopted comprehensive plans.
5. Economic development in each of Island County's Planning Areas should proceed in a coordinated fashion consistent with locally adopted comprehensive plans and development regulations.
6. The County, Municipalities and Port Districts should work collaboratively to address issues of intergovernmental coordination and overlapping responsibility.

4. Administration and Implementation

The purpose of this section is to ensure that the Countywide Planning Policies are administered jointly in a collaborative fashion by the County and Municipalities.

4.1 Countywide Planning Group

1. A Countywide Planning Group (CPG) shall be formed for the purpose of discussing and coordinating countywide planning issues. This group shall be comprised of representatives from the planning departments of Coupeville, Island County, Langley, and Oak Harbor.
2. The CPG shall meet at least two times each year or more frequently as needed.
3. Matters of overlapping concern or jurisdiction should be discussed by the CPG before being advanced for legislative approval by the County or Municipalities.

4.2 Procedures for Adopting or Amending Countywide Planning Policies

1. The Countywide Planning Policies shall be reviewed, updated, or amended as needed during the periodic update and review cycle required by RCW 36.70A.130, provided that any amendments or updates are consistent with the requirements of the GMA.
2. Amendments to the Countywide Planning Policies may be made outside of the normal periodic update cycle if necessary to address unforeseen or unanticipated events which must be addressed prior to the next periodic update cycle. In such instances, revisions may be proposed by a Municipality or the County and should be drafted jointly by the CPG prior to being advanced to the legislative bodies representing Coupeville, Island County, Langley, and Oak Harbor.
3. At least two years before the periodic review deadline established by RCW 36.70A.130 the CPG shall begin a series of meetings to discuss planning issues of countywide importance that may affect the periodic updates of the Municipalities or the County.
4. If necessary amendments or updates are identified during the CPG meetings they shall be forwarded to the BOCC for consideration. If the BOCC makes a decision to adopt the proposed revisions, they shall only become effective when ratified by the majority of legislative bodies representing Coupeville, Island County, Langley, and Oak Harbor.

4.3 Population Projections and Land Capacity Analysis

1. As part of the periodic review process required by RCW 36.70A.130, the CPG shall review, and if necessary, revise the 20 year population projection. The County should lead this effort in cooperation with the Municipalities.
2. In reviewing the 20 year population projection, the CPG shall utilize the medium series projection range issued by the Washington State Office of Financial Management (OFM) as a base, or starting point. The CPG shall then analyze the assumptions used in the development of OFM's forecasting model. In those instances where OFM's assumptions differ from locally observed conditions or trends, adjustments shall be made to the medium series projection.

3. Once a general consensus has been reached by the members of the CPG, the CPG's population projection recommendation shall be forwarded to the Island County Planning Commission and the Board of Island County Commissioners (BOCC) for consideration. Based on the Planning Commission's recommendation, the BOCC shall either adopt the 20 year population projection developed by the CPG or refer the matter back to the CPG for further work.
4. BOCC adoption of a population projection shall include a resolution identifying the population projection to be used. The population projection decision shall only become final when ratified by the majority of legislative bodies representing Coupeville, Island County, Langley, and Oak Harbor.
5. After the BOCC has adopted a population projection, the CPG shall develop a plan for allocating the projected population growth to each of Island County's Planning Areas. This regional allocation process should be based on past growth trends, demographic characteristics, economic conditions, and housing market data.
6. After the regional allocation process described above is completed, the CPG shall divide each regional allocation into an urban component and a rural component; the urban component of each regional allocation shall then be assigned to the UGAs.
7. For each UGA, a land capacity analysis shall be performed to determine if the UGA has sufficient capacity, [with reasonable market factors in accordance with procedures provided in Appendix A](#), to accommodate the projected growth in population and jobs. The land capacity analysis should be conducted by the jurisdiction responsible for the UGA and shall utilize the procedures described in Appendix A.
8. If, based on the results of the land capacity analysis described above, it is determined that a UGA does not have sufficient capacity to accommodate 20 years of population and job growth, the UGA may be expanded as necessary to accommodate the anticipated growth, provided that any proposed expansion shall be consistent with the applicable criteria contained in section 3.3 of these policies.
9. If, based on the results of the land capacity analysis described above, it is determined that a UGA has significantly more capacity than is required to accommodate 20 years of population and job growth, the UGA may be reduced in size if requested by the jurisdiction responsible for the UGA, or if otherwise required to comply necessary to comply with the Growth Management Act, provided that any proposed reduction shall be consistent with the applicable criteria enumerated in section 3.3.

4.4 Monitoring and Reporting Procedures

1. In order to facilitate future analysis, the County and Municipalities will maintain development records which include:
 - a. The number of housing units permitted and constructed annually. This information shall be collected and maintained in a manner which makes it possible to differentiate between new "additional" units and replacement units.
 - b. The number of land divisions approved, the size of the parcel divided, the number of new or additional lots created through each division, the gross and net

- density achieved by each division, and the quantity of land used for public purposes within each division.
- c. The number of multi-family development projects approved, the number of units contained within each development, the gross and net density achieved by each development, and the maximum density permitted in the zone where each project is located.
 - d. The square footage of new commercial or industrial buildings permitted and constructed. This information should be collected and maintained so that it is possible to calculate the floor area or site coverage ratios of each development.
2. The data described above should be provided to Island County Planning Department by the end of January each year for the purpose of maintaining an accurate buildable lands inventory. Following the receipt of this information the County should produce an annual report summarizing development trends in Island County and distribute this report to the Municipalities and Special Service Districts as appropriate.
 3. Arc GIS data should be provided to Island County by the end of January each year to reflect any changes made to Municipal land use or zoning maps. Additionally, Island County should provide updated parcel information to the Municipalities.

5. Fiscal Impact Statement

It is the opinion of the County and Municipalities that the Countywide Planning Policies, in themselves, have no fiscal impact and are an agreed upon method of guiding the planning activities required by the Growth Management Act. As the Growth Management Act and these policies are implemented to their maximum extent, County Government may lose some tax base needed to operate essential services which serve both the County and Municipalities. To compensate for this, legislation may be required to provide tax base sharing. Neither the fiscal impacts of implementing the Growth Management Act itself, nor the development of land use plans and Development Regulations necessary to implement the GMA, are addressed herein.

Countywide Planning Policies

Appendix A: Buildable Lands Procedures

1. DEFINITIONS

1. [Critical Areas: Mapped streams, wetlands, lakes, ponds, steep slopes, and geologically hazardous areas, and their maximum associated buffers.](#)
- 4.2. ~~2.~~ **Critical Area Constraint Factor (CF):** A number representing the percentage of ~~RAID~~ ~~or UGA~~ land ([specific to each area analyzed](#)) which is presumed to be constrained by critical areas, and therefore less likely to be available for development.
- 2.3. **Development Potential (DP), Non-Residential & Multi-Family Residential:** The number of acres available for non-residential and multi-family residential development in each industrial, commercial, mixed use, and multi-family zone. In this analysis, DP is used as a subtotal to express the gross capacity of vacant or re-developable parcels before the Total Development Potential is calculated.
- 3.4. **Development Potential (DP), Single-Family Residential:** The potential number of lots or dwelling units which can be created by dividing or developing vacant or partially vacant parcels in zones which permit single-family residential development. In this analysis, DP is used as a subtotal to express the gross capacity of vacant or partially vacant parcels before the Total Development Potential is calculated.
- 4.5. ~~Undevelopable Parcel (UP)~~ [Low Probability for Development \(LPD\): Parcels which are not likely to be available for development because they are owned by a charitable organization, institution, or governmental entity. Undevelopable LPD parcels shall be identified based on Assessor's parcel data. Parcels which are tax exempt based on Assessor's parcel data shall be considered undevelopable LPD parcels. Parcels with an easement that restricts future development shall also be considered LPD parcels.](#)
- 5.6. **Partially Vacant Parcel (PVP):** A partially vacant parcel is a parcel which contains an existing dwelling unit but which is large enough to be divided.
- 6.7. **Public Purpose Land (PPL):** Includes land required for such things as streets, drainage facilities, and parks/open space.
- 7.8. **Re-Developable Parcel (RP):** A parcel zoned for non-residential uses or multi-family residential uses that has the potential to be redeveloped and used more intensively.
- 8.9. **Total Development Potential, Non-Residential & Multi-Family Residential (TDP):** The total gross quantity of land available for multi-family or non-residential development before land is subtracted to account for public purposes and critical areas.

9.10. Total Development Potential, Single-Family Residential (TDP): The total gross number of lots or dwelling units which could be created by dividing and/or developing all vacant and partially vacant parcels available for single-family development before land is subtracted to account for public purposes and critical areas.

10.11. Total Net Capacity (TNC): The total net capacity of each single-family, multi-family, industrial, commercial, and mixed use zone after land is subtracted for public purposes and critical areas. Total Net Capacity is expressed in acres for multi-family and non-residential zones, and dwelling units or lots for single-family zones.

~~11.12. Undevelopable Parcel (UP): Parcels which are not likely to be available for development because they are owned by a charitable organization, institution, or governmental entity. Undevelopable parcels shall be identified based on Assessor's parcel data. Parcels which are tax exempt based on Assessor's parcel data shall be considered undevelopable.~~

12.13. Vacant Parcel (VP): A parcel which is either vacant or has an improved value of less than \$4,000 based on Assessor's parcel data. Parcels which contain a mobile or manufacture home shall not be considered vacant even if they have an improved value of less than \$4,000.

13.14. When the term **value** is used in this document it shall mean the assessed value identified in the Island County Assessor's Database.

14.15. When the term **BOCC** is used in this document it shall mean the Board of Island County Commissioners.

2. ASSUMPTIONS:

1. **Employment Density:** For commercial and industrial lands the following assumptions should be used:

- a. Commercial, UGA: 17 employees per acre
- b. Industrial: 8 employees per acres

2. In RAIDs and UGAs, 15% of available land will be needed for **public purposes**.

3. **Re-Development Factor:** It is assumed that 50% of multi-family, commercial, and industrial parcels with an improvement to land value of less than 1:2 will be available for redevelopment during the planning period (20 years from the date of the most recent periodic update).

4. **Household Size (or Persons per Household):** ~~For the 2016 periodic update a~~ An average household size for Island County of 2.36 was employed. This figure was ~~will be used for each area analyzed based on data from the 2010 census data. For each subsequent periodic update, the most current census data should be employed.~~

5. **Partially Vacant Parcels:** ~~Parcels located in Rural Areas shall be considered Partially Vacant if they are at least twice the minimum lot size required by the zone in which they~~

~~are located.~~ Due to the smaller minimum lot sizes typically allowed within Urban Growth Boundaries, it is not always practical to assume a parcel that is twice the minimum lot size will be able to subdivide due to the orientation of an existing structure on the property. To account for this, a defined percentage of parcels between 2 and 3.5 times the minimum lot size in the zone should be deducted based on a sliding scale. ~~Specific instructions for this procedure are provided below in the UGA Analysis section.~~ Parcels located in Rural Areas shall be considered partially vacant if they are at least twice the minimum lot size required by the zone in which they are located.

<u>Criteria</u>	<u>Discount Adjustment Factor</u>
<u>2-2.5 times the minimum lot size</u>	<u>75%</u>
<u>2.6-3 times the minimum lot size</u>	<u>50%</u>
<u>3.1-3.5 times the minimum lot size</u>	<u>25%</u>
<u>> 3.5 time the minimum lot size</u>	<u>015%</u>

6. **Rural Capacity Deficiencies:** If there is a capacity deficiency identified in the rural area of any one of the Planning Areas, the allocated population or jobs which are represented by that deficiency will be allocated to the UGA(s) within that Planning Area. If more than one UGA exists within that Planning Area, the population or jobs will be allocated in accordance with the same percentage of allocation used in the Regional Allocation process.
7. **Seasonal/Recreational (SR) adjustment factor:** Some dwelling units will not be available for residential occupancy, as they are used for short term rentals (e.g. VRBOs), second homes, etc. An SR factor will be based on the most current census data, but may be refined using local data.
8. **Vacancy Rate (VR) adjustment factor:** A reasonable factor for vacant units will be based on the most current census data, but may be refined using local data.
9. **Vacant Parcels (VP) adjustment factor:** To account for VPs that will not fully develop to the maximum density allowed over the next planning period, the capacity calculation for VPs will be reduced by a 10% adjustment factor.

3. RURAL ANALYSIS STEPS:

1. Identify all parcels within a RAID or UGA and exclude these parcels from further analysis.
2. Separate parcels by zoning category and identify lands zoned park/open space, special review district, airport, or any other designation which does not allow for residential development. These parcels should be excluded from further analysis.

3. For each zoning designation, identify all ~~undevelopable parcels (UP)~~[Low Probability for Development \(LPD\)](#) based on tax classification. Parcels which are publicly owned or tax exempt (parks, schools, churches etc.) should be considered ~~undevelopable~~[LPD](#) and excluded from further analysis.
4. For each zoning designation, calculate the development potential of all vacant parcels (VP). The development potential of vacant parcels is determined by dividing the parcel area required by the minimum lot size allowed in the zone and rounding down. For example, a 17 acre parcel in the Rural zone could be divided into three five acre parcels ($17/5 = 3.4$) and accommodate three dwelling units.
5. For each zoning designation calculate the development potential of all partially vacant parcels (PVP) by dividing the parcel area by the minimum lot size, rounding down and subtracting one to account for the existing dwelling unit. For example a 17 acre parcel in the Rural zone with an existing home on it could be divided into three five acre parcels and two *additional* homes could be constructed on the resulting parcels. [$(17/5 = 3.4) - 1 = 2.4$].
6. For each zoning designation determine the total development potential (TDP) by adding the results from steps four and five together. This step allows the total build-out capacity for each, non-RAID, rural zoning designation to be determined (in dwelling units).
7. As a final step, add the resulting TDP figures for each zoning designation together to determine the total development potential for areas outside of RAIDs and UGAs. [Apply the critical area constraint factor and the Seasonal/Recreational \(SR\), Vacancy Rate \(VR\), and Vacant Parcels \(VP\) adjustment factors to determine an appropriate amount of land to deduct from the development potential.](#) This step will allow the total ~~build-out~~[net](#) capacity ([TNC](#)) of the rural area (excluding RAIDs) to be determined (in number of dwelling units).
8. In order to determine the number of people that can be accommodated, the dwelling unit totals from steps six or seven can be multiplied by the average household size ~~for Island County~~. The average household size should be determined using the most recent census data available.

4. RAID ANALYSIS STEPS:

4.1. General Steps

1. Identify all parcels which are either located within a UGA or outside of a RAID. Exclude these parcels from further analysis.
2. For each zoning designation, identify all ~~undevelopable parcels (UP)~~[Low Probability for Development \(LPD\)](#) based on tax classification. Parcels which are publicly owned or tax exempt (parks, schools, churches etc.) should be considered ~~undevelopable~~[LPD](#) and excluded from further analysis.

3. Separate residential RAIDs from non-residential RAIDs by zoning designation. Residential RAID parcels should be analyzed separately from non-residential RAID parcels as described below.
4. Determine the critical area constraint factor for each RAID by combining all critical area GIS layers, calculating the number of acres constrained by critical areas within each RAID. The result is a critical area constraint factor for each RAID.

4.2. Determining the Capacity of Single Family Residential RAID Zones

1. For each residential RAID zoning designation calculate the development potential of all vacant parcels (VP). The development potential of vacant parcels is determined by dividing the parcel area by the minimum lot size allowed in the zone and rounding down.
2. For each residential RAID zoning designation calculate the development potential of all partially vacant parcels (PVP). For purposes of this analysis, a partially vacant parcel is a parcel that is at least two times as large as the minimum lot size allowed by the zone. Calculate the development potential of all partially vacant parcels (PVP) by dividing the parcel area by the minimum lot size allowed in the zone and rounding down and subtracting one in order to account for the existing dwelling unit.
3. For each residential RAID zoning designation determine the total development potential (TDP) by adding the results of steps one and two together. Next determine the amount of land needed for public purposes and deduct an appropriate amount of land. Finally, apply the critical area constraint factor and the Seasonal/Recreational (SR), Vacancy Rate (VR), and Vacant Parcels (VP) adjustment factors ~~and to determine deduct~~ an appropriate amount of land to deduct from the development potential. This step allows the total net capacity (TNC) for each residential RAID zoning designation to be determined (in dwelling units).
4. Add the resulting TNC figures for each residential RAID zoning designation together to determine the total development potential for all residential RAID zones. This step will allow the total combined net capacity of residential RAID zones to be determined (in number dwelling units).
5. In order to determine the number of people which can be accommodated, the dwelling unit totals from steps three or four can be multiplied by the average household size ~~for Island County~~. The average household size should be determined using the most recent census data available.

4.3. Determining the Capacity of Multi-Family & Mixed-Use Residential RAID Zones

[See UGA Multi-Family and Mixed-Use Residential instructions.](#)

4.3.4.4. Determining Capacity of Non-Residential RAID Zones

1. For each non-residential RAID zoning designation identify all vacant parcels (VP). Once all of the vacant parcels have been identified, calculate the total combined acreage of these parcels. The resulting number is the non-residential development potential of all vacant parcels (in acres) for each non-residential RAID zoning designation.
2. For each non-residential RAID zoning designation identify all re-developable parcels (RP). A parcel should be considered re-developable if the parcel data indicates that the improvement value to land value ratio is less than 1:2. Once all of the re-developable parcels have been identified, calculate the total combined acreage of these parcels. The resulting number is the non-residential development potential of all re-developable parcels (in acres) for each non-residential RAID zoning designation. As a final step, deduct 50% in order to account for the re-development factor.
3. For each non-residential RAID zoning designation determine the total development potential (TDP) by adding the results of steps one and two together. Next determine the amount of land needed for public purposes and deduct an appropriate amount of land. Finally apply the critical area constraint factor and deduct an appropriate amount of land. This step allows the total net capacity for each non-residential RAID zoning designation to be determined (in acres).
4. Add the resulting TNC figures for each non-residential RAID zoning designation together to determine the total development potential for all non-residential RAID zones. This step will allow the total combined build-out capacity of non-residential RAID zones to be determined (in acres).
5. [In order to determine the number of jobs which can be accommodated in Non-Residential RAID zones, the acreage totals from step four can be multiplied by the average industrial and commercial employment densities.](#)

5. UGA ANALYSIS STEPS:

5.1. General Steps

1. Sort parcels by zoning or comprehensive plan designation using Assessor's parcel data and/or any other applicable information. Zoning or comprehensive plan designation should be obtained from the jurisdiction to ensure the accuracy of information before beginning the analysis.
2. For each UGA, identify all the ~~undevelopable~~ [Low Probability for Development \(LPD\)](#) parcels in each zoning designation. ~~Undevelopable-LPD~~ parcels should include land which is tax exempt (parks, schools, churches and public facilities). Parcels, located in developed tracts, used for stormwater drainage and landscaping should be identified and removed from the analysis. These parcels typically are a requirement of the site plan and are not available for redevelopment. Remove all condominiums and gas stations from the results. Condominiums may show up in the results due to the relatively low improvement to land value of any one unit, however, the aggregate improvement to land value generally makes condominiums unlikely to redevelopment. Gas stations often have a low improvement to property value because they generally have very

limited facilities and expensive real estate; however they are highly unlikely to redevelop. These parcels should be excluded from further analysis.

3. For each UGA, compile all available critical area mapping information and merge these layers into a single layer to determine the total quantity of constrained acreage in each zoning designation. Calculate the percentage of land area within each UGA that is constrained by critical areas by comparing number of acres constrained by critical areas to the total number of acres in each UGA. This calculation will result in a critical area constraint factor for each UGA.
4. Based on available zoning or comprehensive plan information, sort all parcels into four groups as follows: (a) parcels zoned for single family home development (freestanding homes, townhomes, or other forms of individual lot development); (b) parcels zoned for multi-family [or mixed-use residential](#) development (apartments, condominiums, mobile home parks, and other forms of multi-unit per parcel development); (c) commercial and mixed-use [commercial](#) zones; and (d) industrial zones. Each of these groups should then be analyzed separately as described below.

5.2. UGA Capacity - Single Family Zones

1. For each single-family zoning designation calculate the development potential of all vacant parcels (VP). The development potential of vacant parcels is determined by dividing the parcel area by the minimum lot size allowed in the zone and rounding down. When Planning Policies or Development Regulations specify both a minimum and maximum density, both should be calculated to produce a range. Developments since the adoption of the most recent Development Regulations should be used to select the most likely density for expected development to achieve within this potential range.
2. For each single-family zoning designation calculate the development potential of all partially vacant parcels (PVP). For purposes of this analysis, a partially vacant parcel is a parcel that is at least two times as large as the minimum lot size allowed by the zone. Calculate the development potential of all partially vacant parcels (PVP) by dividing the parcel area by the minimum lot size allowed in the zone and rounding down and subtracting one in order to account for the existing dwelling unit. When Planning Policies or Development Regulations specify both a minimum and maximum density, both should be calculated to produce a range. Additionally, identify all the parcels that fall within 2 and 3.5 times the minimum lot size; discount a portion of these based on the sliding scale [below provided in Section 2 \(5\): Assumptions.](#) to account for parcels which are physically large enough to be subdivided, but which cannot be subdivided because of the placement of the existing housing unit on the parcel.

Criteria	Discount Factor
2-2.5 times the minimum lot size	75%
2.6-3 times the minimum lot size	50%
3.1-3.5 times the minimum lot size	25%
> 3.5 time the minimum lot size	0%

3. For each single-family zoning designation determine the total development potential (TDP) by adding the results of steps one and two together. Next, determine the amount

of land needed for public purposes and deduct this percentage from the TDP. Finally, apply the critical area constraint factor [and the Seasonal/Recreational \(SR\), Vacancy Rate \(VR\), and Vacant Parcels \(VP\) adjustment factors](#) for the UGA [to determine](#) ~~deduct~~ an appropriate amount of land [to deduct from the development potential](#). This step allows the total net capacity for each single-family zoning designation in the UGA to be determined (in dwelling units).

4. Add the resulting TNC figures for each residential single-family zoning designation in the UGA together to determine the total development potential for all single-family zones in the UGA. The result of this step will be the total combined capacity of all single-family zones in the UGA (in number dwelling units).
5. In order to determine the number of people that can be accommodated in the UGA's single-family zones the dwelling unit totals from steps three or four can be multiplied by the average household size ~~for Island County~~. The average household size should be determined using the most recent census data available.

5.3. [UGA Capacity – Multi-Family and Mixed-Use Residential Zones*](#)

[*Also used for RAID Capacity – Multi-Family and Mixed-Use Zones](#)

1. Identify all vacant parcels zoned for multi-family [and mixed-use](#) residential development. Determine the development potential of these parcels by multiplying the acreage of the parcels by the density permitted in the zone. For zones with both a minimum and a maximum density, calculate the development potential at both the minimum allowed density and the maximum permitted density. Developments since the adoption of the most recent Development Regulations should be used to select the most likely density for expected development to achieve within this potential range.
2. For all areas designated for multi-family [and mixed-use](#) residential identify the parcels which can be redeveloped. In order to be re-developable, a parcel should have an improvement to land value ratio of less than 1:2. Determine the development potential of these parcels by multiplying the acreage of the parcels by the density permitted in the zone. As a final step, deduct 50% in order to account for the redevelopment factor. For zones with both a minimum and a maximum density calculate the development potential at both the minimum allowed density and the maximum permitted density.
3. For each multi-family [and mixed-use residential](#) zoning designation determine the total development potential (TDP) by adding the results of steps one and two together. Next determine the amount of land needed for public purposes and deduct an appropriate amount of land. Finally, apply the critical area constraint factor for the UGA [and the Seasonal/Recreational \(SR\), Vacancy Rate \(VR\), and Vacant Parcels \(VP\) adjustment factors](#) ~~and to determine~~ ~~deduct~~ an appropriate amount of land [to deduct from the development potential](#). This step allows the total net capacity for each multi-family [and mixed-use residential](#) zoning designation in the UGA to be determined (in dwelling units).
4. Add the resulting TNC figures for each multi-family [and mixed-use](#) residential zoning designation in the UGA together to determine the total development potential for all

multi-family [and mixed-use residential](#) zones in the UGA. The result of this step will be the total combined capacity of all multi-family [and mixed-use residential](#) zones in the UGA (in dwelling units).

5. In order to determine the number of people that can be accommodated in the UGA's multi-family [and mixed-use residential](#) zones, the dwelling unit totals from steps three or four can be multiplied by the average household size ~~for Island County~~. The average household size should be determined using the most recent census data available.

5.4. UGA Capacity – Commercial & Mixed-Use Commercial Zones

1. For each commercial or mixed-use [commercial](#) UGA zoning designation identify all vacant parcels (VP). Once all of the vacant parcels have been identified, calculate the total combined acreage of these parcels. The resulting number is the commercial and mixed-use [commercial](#) development potential of all vacant parcels (in acres) for each non-residential commercial and mixed use zoning designation.
2. For each commercial or mixed-use [commercial](#) UGA designation identify all re-developable parcels (RP). A parcel should be considered re-developable if the parcel data indicates that the improvement value to land value ratio is less than 1:2. Once all of the re-developable parcels have been identified, calculate the total combined acreage of these parcels. As a final step, deduct 50% in order to account for the redevelopment factor. The result, is the development potential of all re-developable parcels (in acres) for each commercial or mixed-use [commercial](#) UGA zoning designation.
3. For each commercial or mixed-use [commercial](#) UGA zoning designation determine the total development potential (TDP) by adding the results of steps one and two together. Next determine the amount of land needed for public purposes and deduct an appropriate amount of land. Finally apply the critical area constraint factor and deduct an appropriate amount of land. This step allows the total net capacity for each commercial or mixed-use [commercial](#) UGA zoning designation to be determined (in acres).
4. Add the resulting TNC figures for each commercial or mixed-use [commercial](#) UGA zoning designation together to determine the total development potential for all commercial or mixed use UGA zones. This step will allow the total combined build-out capacity of commercial or mixed-use [commercial](#) UGA zones to be determined (in acres).
5. In order to determine the number of jobs which can be accommodated in commercial or mixed-use [commercial](#) UGA, the acreage totals from steps three or four can be multiplied by the average commercial employment density.

5.5. UGA Capacity – Industrial Zones

1. For each industrial UGA zoning designation identify all vacant parcels (VP). Once all of the vacant parcels have been identified, calculate the total combined acreage of these parcels. The resulting number is the development potential of all vacant parcels (in acres) for each industrial UGA zoning designation.

2. For each industrial UGA designation identify all re-developable parcels (RP). A parcel should be considered re-developable if the parcel data indicates that the improvement value to land value ratio is less than 1:2. Once all of the re-developable parcels have been identified, calculate the total combined acreage of these parcels. As a final step, deduct 50% in order to account for the redevelopment factor. The result is the development potential of all re-developable parcels (in acres) for each industrial UGA zoning designation.
3. For each industrial UGA zoning designation determine the total development potential (TDP) by adding the results of steps one and two together. Next determine the amount of land needed for public purposes and deduct an appropriate amount of land. Finally apply the critical area constraint factor and deduct an appropriate amount of land. This step allows the total net capacity for each industrial UGA zoning designation to be determined (in acres).
4. Add the resulting TNC figures for each industrial UGA zoning designation together to determine the total development potential for all industrial UGA zones. This step will allow the total combined build-out capacity of industrial UGA zones to be determined (in acres).
5. In order to determine the number of jobs which can be accommodated in commercial or mixed use UGA, the acreage totals from steps three or four can be multiplied by the average industrial employment density.